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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF GRIFFIN 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 
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The Griffin Housing Authority (the Authority’s) management’s discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in 

focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the Authority’s financial activity, (c) identify changes in the 

Authority’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent years’ challenges), and (d) identify individual 

program issues or concerns. 

 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a narrative that should be read in conjunction with the 

Authority’s financial statements to obtain a full understanding of its financial position.   

 

The MD&A is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 

34 (GASB 34). We have provided prior year data that allows the reader to gain an adequate understanding of the Authority’s 

annual operating results and financial position as of September 30, 2017. 

 

Questions concerning the information provided in the discussion or requests for additional information should be addressed to the 

Authority’s Chief Executive Officer. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 

• As of September 30, 2017, total assets increased by $937,974 or 20.82%, while total liabilities increased by $650,590 

or 67.74%. 

 

• The Authority’s Net Position increased by $287,384 or 8.11% during 2017. Since the Authority engages only in 

business-type activities, the increase is all in the category of business-type net position. Net Position was $3,833,093 

and $3,545,709 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

 

• The business-type activity revenues increased by $411,640 or 27.42% during 2017, and were $1,912,888 and 

$1,501,248 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

 

• The total expenses of all Authority programs decreased by $316,690 or 16.31%. Total expenses were $1,625,504 and 

$1,942,194 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 

The following outline describes the integral parts of the financial presentation and is a guideline for understanding its 

components: 

 

I. The MD&A serves as an introduction to the Authority’s financial statements. 

II. Financial Statements 

a. Financial statements 

b. Notes to the financial statements 

III. Other Required Supplementary Information 

 

Financial Statements 

 

The Authority’s financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all business type activities are consolidated into 

columns, which add to a total for the entire Authority. 

 

These Statements include a Statement of Net Position, which is similar to a Balance Sheet. The Statement of Net Position reports 

all financial and capital resources for the Authority. The statement is presented in the format where assets, minus liabilities, equal 

“Net Position,” formerly known as net assets. Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as 

“Current” (convertible into cash within one year), and “Non-current.” Net Position (formerly net assets) is reported in three broad 

categories: 

 

Investment in Capital Assets:  This component of Net Position consists of all Capital Assets, reduced by the outstanding balances 

of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 

assets and any associated accumulated depreciation.   

 

Restricted:  This component of Net Position consists of restricted assets, when constraints are placed on the asset by creditors 

(such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc. 

 

Unrestricted:  Consists of Net Position that does not meet the definition of “Investment in Capital Assets” or “Restricted.”   
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The Authority’s financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

(similar to an Income Statement). This Statement includes Operating Revenues, such as rental income; Operating Expenses, such 

as administrative, utilities, maintenance, and depreciation; and Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses, such as grant revenue and 

investment income. 

 

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used for operating activities, non-

capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities. 

 

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the Financial Statements presentation familiar. The Authority has 

a single Enterprise Fund. Enterprise Funds utilize the full accrual basis of accounting. The Enterprise method of accounting is 

similar to accounting utilized by the private sector. 

 

Separate accounting of the programs maintained by the Authority is required by the Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD).   

 

The Authority’s Programs 

 

Conventional Public Housing – Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Authority rents units that it owns to low-

income households. The Conventional Public Housing Program is operated under an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with 

HUD, and HUD provides operating subsidy and capital grant funding to enable the Authority to provide the housing at a rent that 

is based upon 30% of household income (as defined in the HUD regulations).  

 

Capital Fund Grants – The Authority’s capital funds are received from the federal government through a formula driven 

computation. These funds are used to upgrade our facilities at various developments to give our residents the decent and safe 

living environment they need. Each year’s grant funds must be entirely obligated within two years of inception of the grant, and 

entirely expended within four years.  

 

Resident Opportunities and Supportive Services (ROSS) – A grant program funded by the Department of Housing and Urban 

Development that is intended to assist families to become self-sufficient.  

 

Business Activities – The Authority has established a separate nonfederal program for the purpose of keeping federal program 

funds and nonfederal program funds separated. The Authority intends to use the nonfederal funds included in this program for 

affordable housing projects in the near future. 

 

Component Unit – GHA-MH1, LLC (the “Organization”) is a domestic Limited Liability Company that was organized in the 

State of Georgia in June of 2013. The Organization was formed to promote and develop affordable housing for low to moderate 

income households in the City of Griffin, Georgia. As of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the Organization has yet to 

incur or report any significant activities. GHA-MH1, LLC is considered a blended component unit of the Authority. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY AS A WHOLE 

 

Statement of Net Position 

 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the 

two reported as Net Position. Net Position increased by $287,384 or 8.11%. The following table reflects the condensed Statement 

of Net Position compared to the prior year: 

 

FY 2017 FY 2016 Variance % Change

Assets:

Cash & Investments 1,332,501$          1,172,339$          160,162$         13.66%

Other Current Assets 101,562               214,856               (113,294)         -52.73%

Capital Assets 1,861,967            1,700,297            161,670           9.51%

Other Noncurrent Assets 2,148,058            1,418,622            729,436           51.42%

    Total Assets 5,444,088            4,506,114            937,974           20.82%

Liabilities:

Current Liabilities 237,761$             205,285$             32,476$           15.82%

Non-Current Liabilities 1,373,234            755,120               618,114           81.86%

     Total Liabilities 1,610,995            960,405               650,590           67.74%

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,861,967            1,700,297            161,670           9.51%

Unrestricted 1,971,126            1,845,412            125,714           6.81%

     Total Net Position 3,833,093            3,545,709            287,384           8.11%

     Total Liabilities & Net Position 5,444,088$          4,506,114$          937,974$         20.82%

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 
 

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Position 

 

Cash and investments increased by $160,162 or 13.66%, to $1,332,501. This is explained in the Statement of Cash Flows. Other 

current assets decreased by $113,294 or 52.73%, due to decreases in current notes receivables of $103,662 or 100.00% and 

prepaid expenses of $10,315 or 74.24%. Capital assets increased by $161,670 or 9.51% due to the donation of land and buildings 

to the Authority during the year. Other noncurrent assets increased by $729,436 or 51.42% as a result of an increase in notes 

receivable that are not currently due within the next 12 months. 

 

Current liabilities increased by $32,476 or 15.82%, primarily due to increases accounts payable of $53,123, which is due to 

timing differences at year end. There was also an increase in the loan liability – current of $26,819 or 21.77%. These increases 

were offset somewhat by decreases in accrued wages and payroll taxes payable of $23,141 or 98.20% and unearned revenue of 

$23,448 or 93.64%, which are also due to year end timing differences. Noncurrent liabilities increased by $618,114 or 81.86%, 

primarily due to an increase in loan liability – noncurrent of $600,002 or 82.76%. For more detail, please see the “Debt 

Outstanding” section of this document.  
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

 

The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the current and previous fiscal year. The Authority is engaged 

only in Business-Type Activities. 

 

FY 2017 FY 2016 Variance % Change

Revenues

     Tenant Revenue 212,810$          198,723$          14,087$           7.09%

     Operating Grants 965,921           1,144,265         (178,344)          -15.59%

     Capital Grants 7,000               13,675             (6,675)              -48.81%

     Interest Income 22,099             29,600             (7,501)              -25.34%

     Other Revenue 705,058           114,985           590,073           513.17%

          Total revenues 1,912,888         1,501,248         411,640           27.42%

Expenses

     Administration 662,233           643,014           19,219             2.99%

     Tenant Services 278,390           311,049           (32,659)            -10.50%

     Utilities 115,571           96,192             19,379             20.15%

     Maintenance 316,405           432,019           (115,614)          -26.76%

     Protective Services 22,621             27,916             (5,295)              -18.97%

     General Expenses 75,432             279,614           (204,182)          -73.02%

     Depreciation 143,406           149,477           (6,071)              -4.06%

     Interest 11,446             2,913               8,533               292.93%

          Total expenses 1,625,504         1,942,194         (316,690)          -16.31%

Excess of revenues over expenses 287,384           (440,946)          728,330           -165.17%

Beginning net position 3,545,709         3,986,655         (440,946)          -11.06%

Ending net position 3,833,093$       3,545,709$       287,384$          8.11%

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

 
 

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

 

The Authority had operating income of $269,731 including non-cash depreciation expense of $143,406, versus an operating loss 

of $481,308 and depreciation expense of $149,477 in the prior year. 

 

Total tenant revenue increased by $14,087 or 7.09% over the prior year. Total grants decreased by $185,019 or 15.98% due to the 

continued conversion of the Authority’s public housing units to mixed finance affordable house units that are no longer included 

as part of the Authority’s housing portfolio. This caused a decrease in HUD operating subsidy, as well as a decrease in HUD 

Capital Fund Program funding for the year. Investment income decreased by $7,501 or 25.34%. Other revenue increased by 

$590,073 or 513.17% mainly due to developer fees earned form the conversion of the Meriwether Homes Redevelopment 

project.  

 

Administration cost increased by $19,219 or 2.99% due to increases in salaries and benefits of $28,359 or 8.02%. Tenant services 

decreased by $32,659 or 10.50%. Utilities expense increased by $19,379 or 20.15%. Maintenance costs decreased by $115,614 or 

26.76%. Protective services decreased by $5,295 or 18.97%. General expenses decreased by $204,182 or 73.02%. This was 

primarily due to a decrease in other general expenses of $216,080 which is due to predevelopment costs for Phases I and II of the 

Meriwether Homes Redevelopment project in the prior year. Interest expense increased by $8,533 or 292.93%, due to an increase 

in the loan liability. Depreciation expense was $143,406, a decrease of $6,071 or 4.06%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

5 

Capital Assets 

 

As of the year end, the Authority had $1,861,967 invested in a variety of capital assets as reflected in the following schedule, 

which represents a net increase (additions, deductions and depreciation) of $161,670 or 9.51%, from the end of FY2016. 

 

FY 2017 FY 2016 Total Change % Change

Land 644,985$            517,089$           127,896$            24.73%

Buildings & Improvements 4,817,175           4,691,325          125,850             2.68%

Equipment 323,648             296,222             27,426               9.26%

Construction in Progress 7,000                 -                   7,000                 100.00%

5,792,808           5,504,636          288,172             5.24%

Accumulated Depreciation (3,930,841)          (3,804,339)         (126,502)            3.33%

   Total Capital Assets 1,861,967$       1,700,297$      161,670$          9.51%

 
Debt Outstanding 

 

As of year-end, the Authority had $1,475,002 in outstanding loan liabilities outstanding compared to $848,181 last year, an 

increase of $626,821. $1,000,000 of these loan liabilities is in the form of two loans of $500,000 each of direct subsidy funded 

from a grant from the Atlanta Office of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) for an Affordable Housing Program (AHP). This 

direct subsidy was provided through United Bank, and then funded to the Authority, who is the Project Sponsor, from United 

Bank. This direct subsidy was then subsequently funded by the Authority to Meriwether Redevelopment I, LLC who issued a 

promissory note to the Authority to evidence a loan of these funds from the Authority for the purpose of funding an affordable 

housing redevelopment project. The loans mature in July 2055 and July 2056 and the loans and the direct subsidy have 

continuing AHP compliance requirements throughout the term of the loans. If there is a default on these loans any time 

throughout the term of the loan agreements due to non-compliance or other reasons noted in the loan agreements, the Authority, 

acting as the Project Sponsor, could be responsible for repayment of the loaned AHP direct subsidy to FHLB. The remaining 

$475,002 that constituted the increase in loan liabilities this year is composed of a Line of Credit account with United Bank that 

is to be used to cover certain predevelopment costs related to the Meriwether Redevelopment Projects. The opening of this Line 

of Credit account by the Authority was a condition of obtaining the previously mentioned AHP funds from FHLB of Atlanta.  

 

Other than normal accounts payable and deposits, the Authority had no outstanding debt. 

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS 

 

Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows:  

• Federal funding of the Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

• Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates.  

• Local inflation, recession, and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and therefore the amount of 

rental income.  

• Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies, and other costs.  

 

FINANCIAL CONTACT  

 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances for all those with an interest in the Authority’s 

finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional information should be 

addressed to Mr. Robert Dull, Chief Executive Officer, Housing Authority of the City of Griffin, 770-227-7657. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

To the Board of Commissioners 

Housing Authority of the City of Griffin 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Griffin (the “Authority”), as of and for the year 

ended September 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 

financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 

internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 

audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 

material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 

control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

 

Opinions  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 

of the Authority, as of September 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows 

thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion and analysis on 

pages 1-5 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 

applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 

information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 

statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 

provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 

opinion or provide any assurance.  
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Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that comprise the Authority’s basic 

financial statements. The accompanying supplemental data including the financial data schedule, the statement and certification 

of actual modernization costs, and the statement and certification of actual resident opportunities and self-sufficiency costs, are 

presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and are not 

a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by the audit 

requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 

is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

 

The financial data schedule, the statement and certification of actual modernization costs, the statement and certification of actual 

resident opportunities and self-sufficiency costs, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 

management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 

financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 

statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 

accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 

other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 

opinion, the financial data schedule, the statement and certification of actual modernization costs, the statement and certification 

of actual resident opportunities and self-sufficiency costs, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in 

all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 6, 2018 on our consideration of 

the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 

internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 

control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Henderson & DeJohn, LLC 
 

Birmingham, AL 

June 6, 2018 
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of  

Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

To the Board of Commissioners 

Housing Authority of the City of Griffin 

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 

States, the basic financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Griffin (the “Authority”), as of and for the year 

ended September 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic 

financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 6, 2018.  

 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial 

reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 

expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 

normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A 

material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility 

that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 

weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 

be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

 

Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, 

we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 

noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 

providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 

such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 

under Government Auditing Standards.  

 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 

testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an 

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control 

and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  

 

Henderson & DeJohn, LLC 
 

Birmingham, AL 

June 6, 2018 
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance 

with the Uniform Guidance 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

To the Board of Commissioners 

Housing Authority of the City of Griffin 

 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Housing Authority of the City of Griffin’s (the “Authority”) compliance with the types of compliance 

requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 

and material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2017. The Authority’s 

major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 

questioned costs. 

 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its 

federal programs.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal programs based on our audit 

of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title U.S. 

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for  

Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 

could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 

evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 

necessary in the circumstances.   

 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, 

our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance. 

 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 

could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2017.  

 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the 

types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the 

Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each 

major federal program as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 

accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 

over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over 

compliance. 

 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 

noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 

control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 

prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 

federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 

attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 

and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 

significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 

over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not 

suitable for any other purpose. 

 

Henderson & DeJohn, LLC 
 

Birmingham, AL 

June 6, 2018 
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ASSETS

Current assets:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 446,034$             

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 51,764                 

Investments 834,703               

Due from HUD 19,618                 

Due from other government 22,649                 

Tenants receivable, net 2,939                   

Accrued interest receivable 16,212                 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,579                   

Inventories 36,565                 

Total current assets 1,434,063             

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 651,985               

Building and equipment, net of depreciation 1,209,982             

  Total capital assets 1,861,967             

Notes, loans & mortgages receivable, net of current portion 2,148,058             

Total noncurrent assets 4,010,025             

Total assets 5,444,088             

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 53,123                 

Accrued liabilities 423                     

Intergovernmental payables 10,064                 

Tenant security deposits 17,927                 

Unearned revenue 1,592                   

FSS escrowed liabilities, current portion 2,730                   

Loan liabilities, current portion 150,000               

Compensated absences, current portion 1,902                   

Total current liabilities 237,761               

Noncurrent liabilities:

FSS escrowed liabilities, net of current portion 31,107                 

Loan liabilities, net of current portion 1,325,002             

Compensated absences, net of current portion 17,125                 

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,373,234             

Total liabilities 1,610,995             

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 1,861,967             

Unrestricted 1,971,126             

Total net position 3,833,093$           

 
 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OPERATING REVENUES

Rental income 212,810$               

Federal grants 965,921                 

Other 705,058                 

Total operating revenues 1,883,789               

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration 662,233                 

Tenant services 278,390                 

Utilities 115,571                 

Maintenance 295,233                 

Protective services 22,621                   

General 75,432

Other operating expenses 21,172

Depreciation 143,406                 

Total operating expenses 1,614,058               

Operating income (loss) 269,731                 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest revenue 22,099                   

Interest expense (11,446)                  

Income (loss) before contributions 280,384                 

Capital contributions 7,000                     

Change in net position 287,384                 

Total net position - beginning of the year 3,545,709               

Total net position - end of the year 3,833,093$             

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from tenants 184,707$                   

Federal grants 969,250                     

Other receipts 554,986                     

Payments to suppliers (701,999)                    

Payments to or on behalf of employees (721,218)                    

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 285,726                     

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 121,878                     

Purchase of capital assets (261,936)                    

Capital contributions 7,000                         

Net cash provided (used) by capital 

financing activities (133,058)                    

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND 

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from disbursement of line of credit accounts 229,437                     

Repayments on line of credit accounts (102,616)                    

Interest payments on non-capital loans (10,160)                      

Cash receipts from collection of non-capital notes receivable 103,662                     

Payments for loan disbursements and issuance of non-capital notes receivable (229,436)                    

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital

financing activities (9,113)                        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received from investments 16,607                       

Proceeds from sale of investments 149,184                     

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 165,791                     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 

cash equivalents 309,346                     

Balances - beginning of the year 188,452                     

Balances - end of the year 497,798$                   

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 

PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) 269,731$                    

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 143,406                      

Noncash donations (167,090)                     

Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net 1,662                         

Inventories, net 3,933                         

Prepaids and other assets 10,315                        

Accounts payable 53,123                        

Intergovernmental payables (708)                           

Deferred revenue (23,448)                      

Other liabilities 17,018                        

Accrued liabilities (23,141)                      

Compensated absences 1,217                         

Tenant security deposits (292)                           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 285,726$                    

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Non-cash capital and related financing activities:

Acquisition of donated real property 167,090$                    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Griffin (the “Authority”) have been prepared in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

The Authority has previously implemented GASB Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and 

Analysis – for State and Local Governments.  Certain significant changes in the statements are as follows:  The financial 

statements will include a Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the Authority’s 

overall financial position and results of operations.   

 

The Authority is a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities and therefore, presents only the financial 

statements required for enterprise funds, in accordance with GASB Statement 34, paragraph 138.  For these governments, basic 

financial statements and required supplemental information consist of: 

 

• Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

• Enterprise fund financial statements consisting of – 

➢ Statement of Net Position 

➢ Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

➢ Statement of Cash Flows 

• Notes to financial statements 

• Required supplemental information other than MD& A 

 

The Authority has multiple programs which are accounted for in one enterprise fund, which is presented as the “enterprise fund” 

in the basic financial statements.  Significant Authority policies are described below. 

 

A.  The Reporting Entity 

The Authority was established as a tax-exempt quasi-governmental entity under the United States Housing Act of 1937 for the 

purpose of providing affordable housing to low and moderate income families in Spalding County, Georgia.  The governing body 

of the Authority is composed of a 6 member appointed Board of Commissioners (the “Board”).  The Mayor appoints the Board, 

who in turn hires the Chief Executive Officer.  The Authority is governed by its charter and by-laws, state and local laws and 

federal regulations.  The Board is responsible for the establishment and adoption of policy.  The execution of such policy is the 

responsibility of the Authority’s management.   

 

For financial reporting purposes, the financial reporting entity consists of (1) the primary government (the “Authority”), (2) 

organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and (3) other organizations for which the nature and 

significance of their relationships with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the primary government’s 

financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  The Authority is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of 

an organization’s governing body and (a) it is able to impose its will on the organization or, (b) there is potential for that 

organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the Authority.  The Authority may 

be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the Authority. Based on these criteria, the following entity 

has been identified as a component unit of the Authority. 

 

GHA-MH1, LLC, GHA-MH2, LLC, & GHA-MHA-MH3, LLC (the “Organizations”) are domestic Limited Liability Companies 

that were organized in the State of Georgia under the Georgia Limited Liability Company Act in June of 2013, December 9, 

2016, and May 16, 2017, respectively.  The Organizations were formed to promote and develop affordable housing for low to 

moderate income households in the City of Griffin, Georgia.  They can also form partnerships and limited liability companies and 

currently act as  Members in Meriwether Redevelopment I, LLC, Meriwether Redevelopment II, LLC, and Meriwether 

Redevelopment III, LLC, respectively, 9% tax credit Rental Assistance Demonstration (“RAD”) program projects that are 

currently in development. 

 

The Authority both directly and indirectly controls the operations of the Organizations, and the Authority’s Board also acts as the 

governing body for the Organizations. Therefore, the Organizations are presented as blended component units included in the 

balances of the primary government, thus all significant inter-program balances and transactions between the Organizations and 

the Authority have been eliminated. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the Organizations only had cash deposits 

amounting to $113,678 and receivables due from the primary government amounting to $151,655, with no changes in net 

position from last year. Therefore, no separate condensed financial statements are considered to be necessary for reporting in the 

footnotes to the Authority’s financial statements as now required by GASB 61 for blended component units of the primary 

government. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

B.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The Authority’s financial statements are accounted for on the flow of economic resources management focus using the accrual 

basis of accounting.  The accounting objectives are a determination of net income, financial position, and changes in cash flow.   

 

All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources associated with a proprietary fund’s 

activities are included on the Statement of Net Position.  Proprietary fund net position is segregated into Net Investment in 

Capital Assets, Restricted Net Position and Unrestricted Net Position.  Revenues are recognized when they are earned and 

expenses are recognized when incurred. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal 

ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are rental charges to tenants and operating subsidy 

grants from HUD.  Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of administrative expenses, maintenance expenses, 

and depreciation on capital assets.   

 

All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.  The Authority 

applies restricted resources to fund restricted costs and unrestricted resources to fund unrestricted costs.  All material inter-

program accounts and transactions are eliminated in the preparation of the basic financial statements. 

   

The Authority has previously adopted GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 

Transactions.  In accordance with this statement, the Authority accounted for all grants that qualify as non-exchange transactions, 

recognizing receivables and revenues when all applicable eligibility requirements are met.  In addition, capital contributions are 

recorded on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position after income before contributions and before 

changes in net position. 

 

Generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments requires that resources be classified for accounting and 

reporting purposes into the following three net position categories: 

 

• Net investment in capital assets – Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of 

debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

• The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of 

resources related to those assets. 

• The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 

and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the 

restricted component on net position. 

 

C. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits, savings accounts, money market accounts and 

certificates of deposit and other short-term securities with original maturities of three months or less.  The carrying amounts 

reported on the balance sheet approximate fair values because of the short maturities.  

 

Investment instruments consist only of items specifically approved for public housing agencies by HUD. Investments include 

investment funds made up of money market funds, certificates of deposit, and various securities of government-sponsored 

agencies, all of which have maturities longer than three months. Investments are carried at fair market value.    

 

D. Receivables 

All receivables are current and due within one year.  Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.  

Allowances are reported when accounts are proven to be uncollectible.  As of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the 

Authority deemed all of their receivables to be collectible. 

 

E. Notes, Loans & Mortgages Receivables 

Notes, loans & mortgages receivables relate to affordable housing construction activities where the Authority has loaned funds to 

affiliated entities to be used in the development of mixed financed affordable housing projects. These loans are evidenced by 

promissory notes issued by the affiliated entities to the Authority.  The notes receivable are collectable as defined in the various 

loan agreements. Any portions of the notes receivable that are deemed due and collectable within the next twelve months are 

reported as current assets. The remaining notes receivables that are deemed collectable beyond the next twelve months are 

reported as non-current assets.  No allowance account has been set up as the Authority has determined that the notes are fully 

collectable as of September 30, 2017. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

F. Restricted Assets and Liabilities 

Debt covenants, HUD regulations, and inter-local agreements restrict the use of certain assets. Restricted assets are offset by 

related liabilities in accordance with their liquidity.  

 

G. Inventories 

Inventories are accounted for under the consumption method and recorded at the lower of cost or market, net of an allowance for 

obsolete inventories. Materials and supplies are recorded as inventories when purchased and as expenditures when used.  

Allowances are reported when materials and supplies are deemed obsolete. As of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the 

Authority deemed none of their inventories to be obsolete. 

 

H. Prepaid Items 

Prepaid items consist of payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future periods. 

 

I. Capital Assets 

Capital assets include property, furniture, equipment and machinery.  Capital assets with initial, individual costs that equal or 

exceed $1,000 and estimated useful lives of over one year are recorded as capital assets.  Capital assets are recorded at historical 

cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at 

the date of donation.  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 

incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.  

Construction in progress consists of capital improvements funded by modernization grant programs.  Capital assets are 

depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 

Assets Years 

Buildings & Improvements 5-30 

Improvements other than buildings 5-30 

Furniture, equipment, and machinery 3-10 

 

J. Compensated Absences 

The Authority’s policy allows each employee to accumulate up to 360 vacation hours and be paid for them upon separation.  Sick 

leave can be accumulated by employees, but cannot be paid out upon separation.  Time accrued beyond these amounts is forfeited 

unless exception is granted by the Board.  The majority of employees utilize their annual accrual of vacation and sick leave 

during the year accrued.  The Authority records compensated absences in the period they are earned and uses an allocation 

process to allocate between 10% short-term and 90% long-term liability classification. 

 

K. Unearned Revenue 

The Authority recognizes revenues as earned. An amount received in advance of the period in which it is earned is recorded as a 

liability under unearned revenue. 

 

L. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 

make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ 

from those estimates.  
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

M. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension 

Plan.  This statement replaces GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 

Pension Plans. Statement 74 addresses the financial reports of defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts 

that meet specified criteria. The Statement follows the framework for financial reporting of defined benefit OPEB plans in 

Statement 45 by requiring a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. The 

Statement requires more extensive note disclosures and RSI related to the measurement of the OPEB liabilities for which assets 

have been accumulated, including information about the annual money-weighted rates of return on plan investments. Statement 

74 also sets forth note disclosure requirements for defined contribution OPEB plans.  The adoption of GASB Statement No. 74 

had no material effect on the Authority’s September 30, 2017 financial statements. 

 

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures.  This statement requires state and local 

governments, for the first time, to disclose information about tax abatement agreements.  It also requires governments to disclose 

information about their own tax abatements separately from information about tax abatements that are entered into by other 

governments and reduce the reporting government’s tax revenues.  The adoption of GASB Statement No. 77 had no material 

effect on the Authority’s September 30, 2017 financial statements. 

 

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit 

Pension Plans. This statement amends the scope and applicability of GASB 68 to exclude pensions provided to employees of 

state or local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that: (1) is not a 

state or local governmental pension plan; (2) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to employees of state or local 

governmental employers and to employees of employers that are not state or local governmental employers; and (3) has no 

predominant state or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively with other state or local governmental 

employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). This statement also establishes requirements for recognition and 

measurement of pension expense, expenditures, and liabilities; note disclosures; and required supplementary information for 

pensions that have the characteristics described above.  The adoption of GASB Statement No. 78 had no material effect on the 

Authority’s September 30, 2017 financial statements. 

 

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units. This statement 

clarifies the display requirements in GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, by requiring these component 

units to be blended into the primary state or local government’s financial statements in a manner similar to a department or 

activity of the primary government. The guidance addresses diversity in practice regarding the presentation of not-for-profit 

corporations in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. Although GASB 80 applies to a limited number of 

governmental units, the GASB intends for it to enhance the comparability of financial statements among those units and improve 

the value of this information for users of state and local government financial statements. The adoption of GASB Statement No. 

80 had no material effect on the Authority’s September 30, 2017 financial statements. 

 

NOTE 2 – CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

 

Cash and investments may be invested in the following HUD-approved vehicles: 

 

• Direct obligations of the federal government backed by the full faith and credit of the United States; 

• Obligations of government agencies; 

• Securities of government sponsored agencies; 

• Demand and savings deposits; and, 

• Time deposits and repurchase agreements. 

 

At September 30, 2017, cash was in bank deposits or money market accounts that were insured or collateralized with securities 

held by the Authority or by its agent in the Authority’s name.  The investments were in investment funds made up of money 

market funds, certificates of deposit and various securities of government-sponsored agencies.  Investments were all fully insured 

by the NCUA or FDIC. Cash and investments balances at September 30, 2017 totaled $497,798 and $834,703, respectively.   

 

Interest Rate Risk – The Authority’s formal investment policy does not specifically address the exposure to this risk. 

 

Credit Risk – The Authority’s formal investment policy does not specifically address credit risk.  Credit risk is generally 

evaluated based on the credit ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 

Custodial Credit Risk – The Authority’s policy is to limit credit risk by adherence to the list of HUD permitted investments, 

which are backed by the full faith and credit of or a guarantee of principal and interest by the U.S. Government. 

 

Concentration of Credit Risk – The Authority’s investment policy does not restrict the amount that the Authority may invest in 

any one issuer. 

 

NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

 

A. Changes in Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2017 was as follows:  
 

Beginning 

Balance Additions Retirements Reclassifications

Ending 

Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated

Land 517,089$      249,774$   (121,878)$    -$                     644,985$     

Construction in progress -                  7,000         -                 -                       7,000           

Total capital assets not being depreciated 517,089        256,774     (121,878)      -                       651,985       

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 4,691,325     125,850     -                 -                       4,817,175     

Equipment 296,222        46,402       (18,976)        -                       323,648       

Total capital assets being depreciated 4,987,547     172,252     (18,976)        -                       5,140,823     

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (3,525,201)    (128,628)    -                 -                       (3,653,829)   

Equipment (279,138)      (14,778)      16,904         -                       (277,012)      

Total accumulated depreciation (3,804,339)    (143,406)    16,904         -                       (3,930,841)   

Capital assets, net 1,700,297$   285,620$   (123,950)$    -$                     1,861,967$   

 
 

B. Capital Contributions 

The Authority receives capital grants from HUD.  The Authority recognized $7,000 in capital contributions for the fiscal year 

ended September 30, 2017.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF GRIFFIN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

 

 

20 

NOTE 4 – NOTES, LOANS & MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE 

 

Notes, loans and mortgages receivable consist of the following at September 30, 2017: 

 

Note receivable due from Meriwether Construction, Inc., bearing no interest, maturing May 

2054. The loan is secured by a leasehold deed to secure debt, assignment of rents and

security agreement. The loan was issued May 2014 in the amount of $600,000 to finance

demolition costs associated with the Meriwether Homes mixed-finance affordable housing

redevelopment project and is evidenced by a promissory note. The loan was amended in

June 2015, increasing the loan amount to $693,622. The loan consists of Capital Fund

Program grant funds approved by HUD for use on the Meriwether Homes redevelopment

project as part of the Authority's Capital Fund Program Performance and Evaluation

Reports and their PHA 5-Year Agency and Annual Plans. No payment of principal is

expected to be collected within the next twelve months. 693,622$              

Note receivable due from Meriwether Redevelopment I, LLC, bearing no interest for the

first 24 months and 2.89% thereafter, maturing July 2055. The loan is secured by a

leasehold deed to secure debt, assignment of rents and security agreement. The loan was

issued July 2015 in the amount of $500,000 to finance construction costs associated with

the Meriwether Homes mixed-finance affordable housing redevelopment project and is

evidenced by a promissory note. The loan consists of a grant of direct subsidy funds from

the Atlanta Office of the Federal Home Loan Bank for an Affordable Housing Program.

The funds were provided through United Bank, and then funded to the Authority, who is

the Project Sponsor, from United Bank. The direct subsidy was then subsequently funded

by the Authority to Meriwether Redevelopment I, LLC for use on the Meriwether Homes

redevelopment project. The loan is payable to the Authority forty years from the date of

receipt by and disbursement of the loan funds to Meriwether Redevelopment I, LLC, with

one balloon payment of all principal and accrued interest due at the date of maturity. No

payment of principal or interest is expected to be collected within the next twelve months. 500,000                

Note receivable due from Meriwether Redevelopment II, LLC, originally bearing simple

interest at 6% per annum, maturing at the earlier of December 31, 2018 or the date of

financial closing of the construction loans. The loan was issued August 7, 2015 to finance a

portion of predevelopment costs associated with Phase II of the Meriwether Homes mixed-

finance affordable housing redevelopment projects and is evidenced by a promissory note

and secured by an executed collateral assignment of project documents and works. The

loan consists of United Bank Line of Credit funds drawn down by the Authority and

subsequently paid to Pennrose Properties, the Developer Phase II of the Meriwether

Homes redevelopment project. Repayment of $103,662 of the $328,662 that was originally

loaned was collected upon the financial closing of this project in December 2016, with the

remaining $225,000 in outstanding notes receivable being converted to a permanent loan

that has a maturity date of December 9, 2036 and bears interest at 1% per annum through

and until the date of repayment in full on the loan. This newly converted permanent loan is

evidenced by a promissory note and is secured by a leasehold deed to secure debt,

assignment of rents and security agreement. Accrued interest receivable on the outstanding 

principal balance of this loan amounted to $16,212 as of the fiscal year ended September

30, 2017, with $5,492 of this interest being recognized during the current fiscal year. No

payment of principal or interest is expected to be collected within the next twelve months. 225,000                
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NOTE 4 – NOTES, LOANS & MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE (Continued) 

Note receivable due from Meriwether Redevelopment II, LLC, bearing interest at a rate of

2.89% per anum, maturing December 2056. The loan is secured by a leasehold deed to

secure debt, assignment of rents and security agreement. The loan was issued December

2016 in the amount of $500,000 to finance construction costs associated with the

Meriwether Homes mixed-finance affordable housing redevelopment project and is

evidenced by a promissory note. The loan consists of a grant of direct subsidy funds from

the Atlanta Office of the Federal Home Loan Bank for an Affordable Housing Program.

The funds were provided through United Bank, and then funded to the Authority, who is

the Project Sponsor, from United Bank. The direct subsidy was then subsequently funded

by the Authority to Meriwether Redevelopment II, LLC for use on the Meriwether Homes

redevelopment project. The loan is payable to the Authority forty years from the date of

receipt by and disbursement of the loan funds to Meriwether Redevelopment II, LLC, with

one balloon payment of all principal and accrued interest due at the date of maturity. No

payment of principal or interest is expected to be collected within the next twelve months. 500,000                

Note receivable for up to $524,998 due from Meriwether Redevelopment III, LLC, bearing

no interest, maturing at the earlier of December 31, 2019 or the date of financial closing of

the construction loans. The loan was issued January 24, 2017 to finance a portion of

predevelopment costs associated with Phase III of the Meriwether Homes mixed-finance

affordable housing redevelopment projects and is evidenced by a promissory note and

secured by an executed collateral assignment of project documents and works. The loan

consists of United Bank Line of Credit funds drawn down by the Authority and

subsequently paid to Pennrose Properties, the Developer Phase III of the Meriwether

Homes redevelopment project. Repayment of any amount of outstanding notes receivable

over $300,000 is expected to be collected within the next twelve months upon financial

closing on this project, at which time the remaining $300,000 in the outstanding construction

loan balance will be converted to a permanent loan. Therefore, all of the $229,436 in

currently outstanding loan balance is classified as a noncurrent asset. No payment of

principal or interest is expected to be collected within the next twelve months. 229,436                

2,148,058              
Less current portion -                          

     Long-term portion 2,148,058$            

 
 

NOTE 5 – LOAN LIABILITY 

 

Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing Program Loan Liability for Meriwether Redevelopment Phase I 

In a prior year, the Authority received a direct subsidy of $500,000 funded from a grant from the Atlanta Office of the Federal 

Home Loan Bank (FHLB) for an Affordable Housing Program (AHP). This direct subsidy was provided through United Bank, 

and then funded to the Authority, who is the Project Sponsor, from United Bank. This direct subsidy was then subsequently 

funded by the Authority to Meriwether Redevelopment I, LLC who issued a promissory note to the Authority to evidence a loan 

of these funds from the Authority for the purpose of funding an affordable housing redevelopment project. This loan matures in 

July 2055 and the loan and the direct subsidy have continuing AHP compliance requirements throughout the term of the loan. If 

there is a default on this loan any time throughout the term of the loan agreement due to non-compliance or other reasons noted in 

the loan agreement, the Authority, acting as the Project Sponsor, could be responsible for repayment of the loaned AHP direct 

subsidy to FHLB. Therefore, the Authority has reported the amount of the loan as a noncurrent loan liability on the face of the 

Statement of Net Position.  
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NOTE 5 – LOAN LIABILITY (Continued) 

 

Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing Program Loan Liability for Meriwether Redevelopment Phase II 

On December 9, 2016, the Authority received a direct subsidy of $500,000 funded from a grant from the Atlanta Office of the 

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) for an Affordable Housing Program (AHP). This direct subsidy was provided through United 

Bank, and then funded to the Authority, who is the Project Sponsor, from United Bank. This direct subsidy was then 

subsequently funded by the Authority to Meriwether Redevelopment II, LLC who issued a promissory note to the Authority to 

evidence a loan of these funds from the Authority for the purpose of funding an affordable housing redevelopment project. This 

loan matures in December 2056 and the loan and the direct subsidy have continuing AHP compliance requirements throughout 

the term of the loan. If there is a default on this loan any time throughout the term of the loan agreement due to non-compliance 

or other reasons noted in the loan agreement, the Authority, acting as the Project Sponsor, could be responsible for repayment of 

the loaned AHP direct subsidy to FHLB. Therefore, the Authority has reported the amount of the loan as a noncurrent loan 

liability on the face of the Statement of Net Position.  

 

United Bank Line of Credit Liability 

As a condition of obtaining the previously mentioned AHP funds from FHLB of Atlanta, the Authority was required to open up a 

Letter of Credit account with United Bank to be used to cover certain predevelopment costs related to the Meriwether 

Redevelopment Projects. The line of credit agreement was executed on December 15, 2014 with an initial maturity date of 

December 15, 2015 and an available line of credit balance of $800,000. The line of credit account bears interest on the 

outstanding principal balance at a rate of 2.30% per year. This line of credit account is considered an open end credit account and 

the maturity date for this account has since been modified several times to extend the maturity date past the Authority’s fiscal 

year ended September 30, 2017.  The balance at December 10, 2016 from this line of credit account balance totaling $348,181 

was transferred to a new line of credit account that the Authority opened with United Bank for the Meriwether Redevelopment 

Phase II project and this line of credit account has now been closed.  

 

The new line of credit account was executed on December 14, 2016 with a maturity date of December 15, 2018 and an available 

line of credit balance of $800,000.  This new line of credit account is also considered an open end credit account, and bears 

interest at a variable interest rate that equals 1.00% below the prime rate as published in the Wall Street Journal. As of September 

30, 2017, the outstanding balance on this new line of credit account amounted to $475,002. Total interest expense for the year 

amounted to $9,243. As $150,000 of the $475,002 outstanding line of credit account balance is expected to be repaid back to the 

Authority within the next fiscal year upon financial closing of the Meriwether Redevelopment Phase III project, the Authority has 

classified this portion of the outstanding principal balance of this line of credit account as a current loan liability on the face of 

the Statement of Net Position since the Authority will repay this portion of the outstanding line of credit balance immediately 

upon being repaid by Meriwether Redevelopment III, LLC. The remaining $325,002 is not expected to be repaid within the next 

12 months and thus will be classified as noncurrent loan liabilities on the face of the Statement of Net Position.  

 

NOTE 6 – NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 

 

Noncurrent liabilities at September 30, 2017 consisted of the following: 

 

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

FSS escrowed liabilities 16,819  $           18,618                 1,600  $      33,837  $             2,730 

Loan liabilities             848,181             729,437             102,616     1,475,002             150,000 

Compensated absences               17,810               19,345               18,128         19,027                 1,902 

Total noncurrent liabilities  $          882,810  $          767,400  $          122,344  $ 1,527,866  $          154,632 

 
NOTE 7 – PENSION PLAN (DEFINED CONTRIBUTION) 

 

The Authority provides pension benefits for its employees through a defined contribution plan, which is administered by Debra 

Smith of the Variable Annuity Life Insurance Company. The plan was adopted by the Board of Commissioners on August 1, 

2005. Only the Board has the authority to approve any amendments to the plan. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend 

solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees are eligible for the plan after ninety days of 

service.  The Authority contributes an amount equal to 9% of each employee’s base salary to the plan.  During the past year, the 

Authority’s contributions were $37,966. Employees contribute an amount equal to 4% of their annual base salary. During the past 

year, employee contributions were $24,370. 
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NOTE 8 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The Authority is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, or damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 

omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The Authority has mitigated this risk by obtaining insurance coverage 

from commercial insurance companies.  Premiums paid for insurance coverage are recorded as expenses of the funds affected.  

The various insurance policies are subject to deductible amounts and maximum coverages.  If the deductibles and maximums are 

exceeded, this could cause the Authority to suffer losses if a loss is incurred from any such incidents.  The ultimate outcome of 

uninsured losses cannot presently be determined, and no provision for any liability that may result, if any, has been made in the 

financial statements. During the current year and the prior three years, settled claims have not exceeded coverage levels, and 

insurance coverage, by major categories of risk, is consistent with prior year. 

 

NOTE 9 – GROUND LEASE AGREEMENTS 

 

The Authority entered into several ground leases with selected entities in furtherance of the Authority’s affordable housing 

redevelopment objectives. These leases are classified as operating leases and all expire 99 years from the ground lease agreement 

dates. 

 

As of September 30, 2017, the Authority had ground lease agreements in place as follows: 

 

Meriwether Homes Redevelopment (Phase I) 

On April 7, 2013, the Authority (Landlord) entered into a Ground Lease Agreement with Meriwether Redevelopment I, LLC (the 

Project Owner), for the purpose of constructing a new mixed-finance affordable housing development. 

 

The lease consisted of an initial option price payment of $10 that was paid concurrently with the execution of the lease 

agreement. The term of the lease is 99 years, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of the lease agreement. 

The rent on the lease equals $1 per year for the term of the lease, all of which will be paid in advance at closing.   

 

Meriwether Homes Redevelopment (Phase II) 

On May 7, 2015, the Authority (Landlord) entered into a Ground Lease Agreement with Meriwether Redevelopment II, LLC (the 

Project Owner), for the purpose of constructing a new mixed-finance affordable housing development. 

 

The lease consisted of an initial option price payment of $10 that was paid concurrently with the execution of the lease 

agreement. The term of the lease is 99 years, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of the lease agreement. 

The rent on the lease equals $1 per year for the term of the lease, all of which will be paid in advance at closing.   

 

Meriwether Homes Redevelopment (Phase III) 

On June 3, 2016, the Authority (Landlord) entered into a Ground Lease Agreement with Meriwether Redevelopment III, LLC 

(the Project Owner), for the purpose of constructing a new mixed-finance affordable housing development. 

 

The lease consisted of an initial option price payment of $10 that was paid concurrently with the execution of the lease 

agreement. The term of the lease is 99 years, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of the lease agreement. 

The rent on the lease equals $1 per year for the term of the lease, all of which will be paid in advance at closing.   

 

NOTE 10 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK 

 

The Authority receives most of its funding from HUD.  These funds and grants are subject to modification by HUD depending on 

availability of funding. 
 

NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

Grants 

Amounts received or receivable from HUD are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies.  If expenses are disallowed 

as a result of these audits, the claims for reimbursement to the grantor agency would become a liability of the Authority.  In the 

opinion of management, any such adjustments would not be significant. 
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NOTE 12 – INTERPROGRAM BALANCES 

 

Interprogram balances September 30, 2017 consisted of the following: 

 

Low Rent Public Housing (AMP 105)

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services

Blended Component Unit (GHA-MH1, LLC)

Business Activities

Central Office Cost Center

     Total

151,655                

(6,287)$               

(11,337)               

 Interprogram Due 

From 

-$                        

-                          

(211,781)              

229,405$              

77,750                  -                         

 Interprogram Due 

To 

(229,405)$            

-                          

-                         

 
These interprogram balances exist because in the normal course of operations, certain programs may pay for common costs or 

advance funds for operational shortfalls that create interprogram receivables or payables.  The balances are expected be repaid 

within one year from the balance sheet date. 

 

NOTE 13 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

The Authority paid Pilkenton Development, which is owned by Board Chairman Harvey Pilkenton, to set up site work for their 

Community HOME Investment Program (“CHIP”) houses prior to receiving CHIP funds.  The Authority paid Pilkenton 

Development out of non-operating non-federal business activities’ funds. The total amount paid to Pilkenton Development during 

the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 totaled $3,325. 

 

NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 

Events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for 

recognition or disclosure.  The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about the conditions that existed at the balance 

sheet date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements.  Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions 

that existed after the balance sheet date require disclosure in the accompanying notes.  Management evaluated the activity of the 

Authority through June 6, 2018 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued) and concluded that, except as noted 

below, no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the notes to 

the financial statements. 

 

In June of 2013, the Authority was notified by HUD that their application for the Phase I (44 units) Multi-Phased Rental 

Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program was accepted. In June of 2014 the Authority was notified by HUD that their 

application for the Phase II (56 units) Multi-Phased Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) was accepted.  The primary reasons 

for the RAD application were to secure stable funding and adequate capital for the redevelopment of Meriwether Homes Low 

Income Public Housing project, and to obtain the ability to plan this redevelopment project without fear of reduced 

appropriations and recapture of saved funds.  In, 2014, HUD formally approved the RAD funding for 42 of the 84 total units in 

Phase I.  However, in May 2015, HUD determined that the Authority would not be able to receive RAD subsidies for Phases II 

and III, and the previous authorization for Phase II (56 units) was rescinded. 

 

In 2014, the Authority demolished the Meriwether Homes project and began redevelopment of this three phased project with 

construction starting on the first phase of the project (an 84 unit family site), began predevelopment of the second phase (an 85 

elderly housing site), and also began preliminary planning activities for the third phase (approximately 90 unit scattered site 

development). The total units currently planned for redevelopment in the aggregate is 259 affordable housing units. Development 

of the first phase of this rental property was based on the approval of a Low Income Housing Tax Credits and a HOME Loan 

award as requested by the Authority to the Georgia Department of Community Affairs. Utilization of RAD Program funding is 

contingent upon the development of this rental property.   

 

The demolition was completed in 2014 and was funded by the Griffin Housing Authority to Meriwether Construction Inc. using 

it’s Capital Funds via a $600,000 demolition loan/promissory note dated May 27, 2014, as approved under HUD’s Demolition 

Disposition/Section 18 Program. This loan served as the contractual instrument to complete the scope of work and served as 

budget authority for the demolition of Meriwether Homes. This loan will be carried on the Authority’s books for the term of 40 

years from the effective date of the loan.  
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NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued) 

 

The Authority has chosen to convert the new rental property units to Project Based Rental Assistance (PBRA) which is the 

Multifamily Section 8 model.  The 42 units of public housing have been moved from the Public Housing Branch of HUD to the 

Multifamily Branch. With the Authority moved to Multifamily, the Authority and its partners will receive rental payments on 

behalf of the tenants based on an established rent by bedroom size.   

 

Due to HUD’s rescinding of RAD authorization, it is now envisioned that the development of Phases II and III will use public 

housing subsidies and along with Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) awarded by the Georgia Department of Community 

Affairs for both phases.  The Authority is resubmitting its request to HUD for the RAD conversion on the Phases II and III public 

housing units. 

 

In regards to the LIHTC mentioned in the previous paragraph, the Authority selected Pennrose Properties, LLC (Pennrose) as its 

development partner for the redevelopment of the Meriwether Homes project. Additionally, for the submission of LIHTC 

applications and ownership participation, the Authority establish GHA-MH1, LLC, a domestic Limited Liability Company that 

was organized in the State of Georgia under the Georgia Limited Liability Company Act in June of 2013.  The Organization was 

formed to promote and develop affordable housing for low to moderate income households in the City of Griffin, Georgia. It can 

also form partnerships and limited liability companies and currently acts as a Member in Meriwether Redevelopment I LLC, the 

owner for Phase I, a 9% tax credit Rental Assistance Demonstration (“RAD”) program project.  

 

To submit LIHTC applications for all phases, the Authority executed a ‘pre-application’ letter agreement between the Authority 

and Pennrose detailing analysis, design, budget and supporting documentation and cost associated with the pre-application 

process. These letter agreements may be subsequently superseded by formal predevelopment loan agreements for each phase.   

The costs obligated through the predevelopment loan agreements and letter agreements are applied to the particular phase by 

either construction loans or by permanent debt to the project at the financial closing for that phase.    

 

As an example, the letter agreement for Phase I provided a related cost commitment to the Authority for the application process 

at a not to exceed $288,009 through Letter Agreement dated Feb. 13, 2013.  Subsequently, the predevelopment loan agreement 

dated, March 28, 2014 replaced that Letter Agreement. Finally, the Authority, ultimately committed to a construction loan of 

$500,000 on Oct. 30, 2014, which included the costs incurred for that phase, to be repaid during the construction of Phase I. 

 

The Authority established GHA-MH1, LLC, a domestic Limited Liability Company that was organized in the State of Georgia 

under the Georgia Limited Liability Company Act in June of 2013, for Phase I. It was the intent to use the same entity to 

participate in the ownership for Phase II as well as Phase III; however, due to investor and tax requirements separate entities for 

Phases II and III have been formed. The Organization was formed to promote and develop affordable housing for low to 

moderate income households in the City of Griffin, Georgia.  It can also form partnerships and limited liability companies and 

currently acts as a Member in Meriwether Redevelopment I LLC.    GHA-MH2, LLC, a domestic Limited Liability Company 

was organized in the State of Georgia under the Georgia Limited Liability Company Act in November 30, 2016, for the closing 

of Phase II.  GHA-MH3, LLC, a domestic Limited Liability Company organized in the State of Georgia under the Georgia 

Limited Liability Company Act is being formed for the closing of Phase III. 

 

Phase I Redevelopment: 

As noted earlier, for Phase I the Authority provided a Construction Loan commitment of $500,000 to be funded by Authority’s 

Capital Funds and Operating Reserves, as well as a $500,000 permanent loan funded from a grant of $500,000 from the Atlanta 

Office of the Federal Home Loan Bank for an Affordable Housing Program (AHP).  This grant is provided through United Bank 

as its sponsor, and then funded to the Authority in a loan from United Bank.  The payment of the United Bank loan will be 

addressed at maturity date, 40 years from the disbursement of the funds.      

 

As part of the development efforts, the Authority executed a “Development Services/Operating Agreement” between themselves 

and Pennrose detailing partnership details as well as “developer fee” structure.  In this agreement, it is noted that the partnership 

will receive “developer fees” in the amount of up to $1.8 million (excluding consultant fees for the project), with twenty-five 

percent of the “developer fees” being allocated to the Authority and the other seventy-five percent being allocated to Pennrose. 

Other highlights include a 50/50 cash-flow split and the potential of future management fees. 

 

With the payment of the Phase I Construction Loan, the Authority will have none of its own Capital Funds or Operating Reserve 

funds permanently used for the Phase I portion of the redevelopment. With the AHP grant and loan, the Authority was not 

required to use the Capital Funds or Operating Reserve funds committed for Phase I, freeing these funds for Phase II 

Redevelopment.  
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NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued) 

 

Phase II Redevelopment: 

As noted earlier, to submit LIHTC applications the Authority executed a ‘pre-application’ letter agreement in 2014 between the 

Authority and Pennrose for the pre-application process. However, it was subsequently decided to not submit an application in 

2014.  The Letter Agreement for the 2014 work was closed out and a separate Letter Agreement was executed for the 2015 

LIHTC application on March 6, 2015. On August 7, 2015 The Authority and Pennrose entered into a formal predevelopment loan 

agreement in the amount of $676,776 that will supersede the Letter Agreement.  The costs obligated through the predevelopment 

loan agreements and letter agreement were applied to Phase II’s construction loans or permanent debt to the project at the 

financial closing for that phase.   

 

For Phase II, the Authority executed a “Letter of Financial Commitment” (Loan to redevelopment project) for its LIHTC 

application.  As a part of this letter, the Authority detailed its financial commitments to the redevelopment of the Meriwether 

Homes Phase II project which includes an estimated commitment by the Authority of $700,000 to be paid from Housing 

Authority Capital Funds and Operating Reserves.   Additionally, the Authority applied to the Atlanta Office of the Federal Home 

Loan Bank, and was awarded, for an Affordable Housing Program (AHP) grant of $500,000 for Phase II.  With the award of this 

the Authority will only need to utilize $225,000 of its Capital Funds and Operating Reserves for the project allowing $400,000 

available for Phase III Redevelopment.   

 

To submit a LIHTC application for Phase II, DCA required the Authority to execute a “Development Services/Operating 

Agreement” between themselves and Pennrose detailing partnership details as well as “developer fee” structure.  In this 

agreement, it is noted that the partnership will receive “developer fees” in the amount of up to $1.8 million (excluding consultant 

fees for the project), with twenty-five percent of the “developer fees” being allocated to the Authority and the other seventy-five 

percent being allocated to Pennrose. Other highlights include a 50/50 cash-flow split and the potential of future management fees. 

 

Phase III Redevelopment: 

As noted earlier, the Authority worked with Pennrose to submit a 2016 LIHTC application for a third off-site phase for 

Meriwether.   The off-site phase is located in the Spring Hill area of Griffin Georgia just south of the Meriwether Homes site.  

The Authority executed a ‘pre-application’ letter agreement dated April 12, 2016 between the Authority and Pennrose for the pre-

application process. It was determined that the related cost commitment to the Authority for the application process was not to 

exceed $151,550.  The Authority and Pennrose have entered into a formal predevelopment loan agreement that will supersede the 

Letter Agreement.  The costs obligated through the predevelopment loan agreements and letter agreement will be applied to 

Phase III’s construction loans or permanent debt to the project at the financial closing for that phase dependent on the availability 

of funds.   

 

For Phase III, the Authority executed a “Letter of Financial Commitment” (Loan to redevelopment project) for its LIHTC 

application.  As a part of this letter, the Authority detailed its financial commitments to the redevelopment of the Meriwether 

Homes Phase III project which includes a commitment by the Authority of $300,000 to be paid from Housing Authority Capital 

Funds and Operating Reserves.   Additionally, the Authority has applied to the Atlanta Office of the Federal Home Loan Bank 

for an Affordable Housing Program (AHP) grant of $500,000 for Phase III.   

 

To submit a LIHTC application for Phase III, DCA required the Authority to execute a “Development Services/Operating 

Agreement” between themselves and Pennrose detailing partnership details as well as “developer fee” structure.  In this 

agreement, it is noted that the partnership will receive “developer fees” in the amount of up to $1.5 million (excluding consultant 

fees for the project), with twenty-five percent of the “developer fees” being allocated to the Authority and the other seventy-five 

percent being allocated to Pennrose. Other highlights include a 50/50 cash-flow split and the potential of future management fees. 

 

To document site control as required for the LIHTC application to DCA, the Authority entered into an Option Agreement 

between themselves and the City of Griffin for the sum of $10.00 for four parcels of the proposed Phase III development site.  It 

further entered into an Agreement to Enter into Ground Lease between themselves and Meriwether Redevelopment III LLC for 

the sum of $10.00 for the entirety of the Phase III site. 

 

The Authority further committed public housing subsidies to the operations of 35 public housing units being developed as a part 

of the Meriwether Phase III effort. 
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NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued) 

 

Fairmont – Nine Oaks Redevelopment: 

GHA seeks to transition its last two public housing developments with a 4% tax credit application for its Fairmont Homes (80 

units - Family) and Nine Oaks Apartments (50 Units – Senior) sites in one single financing strategy. To redevelop these sites, 

GHA is planning to use HUD’s Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program to remove the public housing subsidies and 

allow for the ability to carry debt for the redevelopment.  HUD has issued an award letter (CHAP) dated April 19, 2017 with a 

tentative closing date in October 2018. Fairmont-Nine Oaks, LLC, a domestic Limited Liability Company was organized in the 

State of Georgia under the Georgia Limited Liability Company Act in January 22, 2018, for the closing of Fairmont Nine Oaks 

Redevelopment 

 

As well the Authority continues to work with Pennrose to submit a 2018 4% LIHTC application for Fairmont and Nine Oaks 

development in June 2018. The Authority executed a ‘pre-application’ letter agreement dated February 28, 2017 between the 

Authority and Pennrose for the pre-application process. It was determined that the related cost commitment to the Authority for 

the application process was not to exceed $99,276.  The Authority and Pennrose have entered into a formal predevelopment loan 

agreement that will supersede the Letter Agreement in the amount of $400,000.  The costs obligated through the predevelopment 

loan agreements and letter agreement will be applied to Fairmont – Nine Oaks construction loans or permanent debt to the project 

at the financial closing for that phase dependent on the availability of funds.  Additionally, the Authority has plans to apply to the 

Atlanta Office of the Federal Home Loan Bank for an Affordable Housing Program (AHP) grant of $500,000 for Fairmont – 

Nine Oaks redevelopment as it has done in previous phases of redevelopment.   
 

Other Redevelopment Activities: 

On Nov. 17, 2017 GHA purchased properties located at 325/327 S. 9th Street in Griffin, GA.  

 

325 S. 9th St was purchased for a total cost of $161,714.43 using non-restricted revenue. 327 S. 9th St was purchased for a total 

cost of $464.148.26 using $78,157.77 of non-restricted revenue and a loan provided by United Bank in the amount of $585,000 

($199,009.51 of the loan was used for a construction draw and $385,990.49 was used for this purchase). 

 

GHA is in the process of renovating the building at 327 S. 9th St. and will use the lower floor as professional service office space 

rentals.  This will cover the overhead and mortgage of the purchase.  The upper floor will house Griffin Housing Redevelopment 

Authority.   

 

The plans for 325 S. 9th St. are to tear the building down and create a larger parking area for use by those visiting 327 S. 9th St. 

 

The appraised value of the properties/buildings, after renovations, is expected to be $983,000.  

 

NOTE 15 – FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

 

The Authority prepares its financial data schedule in accordance with HUD requirements in a prescribed format. The schedule’s 

format excludes depreciation expense and casualty losses – non-capitalized from operating activities and includes investment 

revenue, interest expense and capital grant revenue in operating activities, which differs from the presentation of the basic 

financial statements.   
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Federal 

CFDA

Pass-Through 

Entity Identifying 

 Primary 

Government 

Federal 

Federal Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Direct Programs:

Low Rent Public Housing Program 14.850 638,869$          

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services 14.870 71,556              

Public Housing Capital Fund Program 14.872 129,081            

FSS Program Coordinator 14.896 69,000              

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Direct Programs 908,506            

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Pass-Through Programs From:

Georgia Department of Community Affairs - HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 CHIP 2016-106 64,415              

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Pass-Through Programs 64,415              

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 972,921$          

 

 

 

Note 1 – Basis of Presentation 
 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award activity of the 

Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is 

presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents 

only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes 

in net position, or cash flows of the Authority.  

 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized 

following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 

limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal 

course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. The Authority has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis 

indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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GA06P061501-14

Funds Approved 297,798$                  

Funds Expended 297,798$                  

Excess of Funds Approved -$                              

Funds Advanced (HUD Grants) 297,798$                  

Funds Expended 297,798$                  

Excess of Funds Advanced -$                              

 

 

 

 

1.  The distribution of costs by project as shown on the Final Statement of Modernization Cost dated September 30, 2015, 

accompanying the Actual Modernization Cost Certificate submitted to HUD for approval is in agreement with the Authority’s 

records. 

 

2.  All Modernization costs have been paid and all related liabilities have been discharged through payment. 
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GA061RPS043A013

Funds Approved 246,000$                     

Funds Expended 245,824$                     

Excess of Funds Approved 176$                            

Funds Advanced (HUD Grants) 245,824$                     

Funds Expended 245,824$                     

Excess of Funds Advanced -$                                 

 
 

 

1.  The distribution of costs as shown on the Resident Opportunities and Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) Program final financial 

status report of the ROSS Program expenditures submitted to HUD on December 28, 2017, is in agreement with the 

Authority’s records. 

 

2.  All ROSS Program costs have been paid and all related liabilities have been discharged through payment. 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes x No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes x None Reported

Is any noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes x No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes x No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes x None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 

major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 

reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes x No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA #14.850 - Low Rent Public Housing Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A

and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? x Yes No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None

Section III - Federal Award Findings

None

$750,000

Unmodified

Unmodified
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To the Board of Commissioners 

Housing Authority of the City of Griffin 
 

Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedure 
 

We have performed the procedure described in the second paragraph, which was agreed to by the Housing Authority of the City 

of Griffin (the Housing Authority) and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Real Estate Assessment Center 

(REAC), solely to assist them in determining whether the electronic submission of certain information agrees with related hard 

copy documents included within the Single Audit reporting package.  The Housing Authority is responsible for the accuracy and 

completeness of the electronic submission.  This agreed upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with 

attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of the procedure is 

solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 

sufficiency of the procedure described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 

purpose. 
 

We compared the electronic submission of the items listed in the “UFRS Rule Information” column with the corresponding 

printed documents listed in the “Hard Copy Documents” column.  The results of the performance of our agreed-upon procedure 

indicate agreement or non-agreement of electronically submitted information and hard copy documents as shown in the chart 

below. 
 

We were engaged to perform an audit in accordance with 2 CFR 200 Subpart F, Audit Requirements, for the Housing Authority 

as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017, and have issued our reports thereon dated June 6, 2018.  The information in the 

“Hard Copy Documents” column was included within the scope, or was a by-product, of that audit.  Further, our opinion on the 

fair presentation of the Housing Authority’s Financial Data Schedule (FDS) dated June 6, 2018, was expressed in relation to the 

basic financial statements of the Housing Authority taken as a whole. 
 

A copy of the reporting package required by OMB, which includes the auditor’s reports, is available in its entirety from the 

Housing Authority.  We have not performed any additional auditing procedures since the date of the aforementioned audit 

reports.  Further, we take no responsibility for the security of the information transmitted electronically to the U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development, REAC. 
 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Housing Authority and the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development, REAC, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

Procedure UFRS Rule Information Hard Copy Documents Agrees 

Does Not 

Agree 

1 Balance Sheet and Revenue and Expense 

Financial Data Schedule, 

all CFDAs, If applicable X   

2 Footnotes 

Footnotes to audited basic financial 

statements X   

3 Type of opinion on FDS 

Auditor's supplemental report on 

FDS X   

4 Audit findings narrative 

Schedule of Findings and 

Questioned Costs X   

5 General Information OMB Data Collection Form X   

6 Financial Statement report information 

Schedule of Findings and 

Questioned Costs, Part 1 and OMB 

Data Collection Form X   

7 Federal program report information 

Schedule of Findings and 

Questioned Costs, Part 1 and OMB 

Data Collection Form X   

8 Type of Compliance Requirement OMB Data Collection Form X    

9 

Basic financial statements and auditor 

reports required to be submitted 

electronically 

Basic financial statements 

(inclusive of auditor reports) X   
 

Henderson & DeJohn, LLC 
Birmingham, AL      

June 6, 2018 
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Project Total

14.896 PIH Family 

Self-Sufficiency 

Program

14.870 Resident 

Opportunity and 

Supportive 

Services

6.2 Component 

Unit - Blended

14.182 N/C S/R 

Section 8 

Programs

1 Business 

Activities
COCC Subtotal ELIM Total

 
 111  Cash - Unrestricted $25,342 $113,678 $286,157 $20,857 $446,034 $446,034 

 112  Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development

 113  Cash - Other Restricted $31,107 $31,107 $31,107 

 114  Cash - Tenant Security Deposits $17,927 $17,927 $17,927 

 115  Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities $2,730 $2,730 $2,730 

 100  Total Cash $77,106 $0 $0 $113,678 $0 $286,157 $20,857 $497,798 $0 $497,798 

 

 121  Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects

 122  Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects $8,281 $11,337 $19,618 $19,618 

 124  Accounts Receivable - Other Government $22,649 $22,649 $22,649 

 125  Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous

 126  Accounts Receivable - Tenants $2,939 $2,939 $2,939 

 126.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 126.2  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 127  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current

 128  Fraud Recovery

 128.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 129  Accrued Interest Receivable $16,212 $16,212 $16,212 

 120  Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts $27,432 $0 $11,337 $0 $0 $22,649 $0 $61,418 $0 $61,418 

 

 131  Investments - Unrestricted $628,766 $205,937 $834,703 $834,703 

 132  Investments - Restricted

 135  Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability

 142  Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets $3,350 $229 $3,579 $3,579 

 143  Inventories $36,565 $36,565 $36,565 

 143.1  Allowance for Obsolete Inventories $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 144  Inter Program Due From $0 $151,655 $77,750 $0 $229,405 ($229,405) $0 

 145  Assets Held for Sale

 150  Total Current Assets $773,219 $0 $11,337 $265,333 $0 $386,556 $227,023 $1,663,468 ($229,405) $1,434,063 

 

 161  Land $258,312 $386,673 $644,985 $644,985 

 162  Buildings $4,617,895 $125,850 $73,430 $4,817,175 $4,817,175 

 163  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings

 164  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration $136,710 $46,402 $140,536 $323,648 $323,648 

 165  Leasehold Improvements

 166  Accumulated Depreciation ($3,740,724) ($6,076) ($184,041) ($3,930,841) ($3,930,841)

 167  Construction in Progress $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 

 168  Infrastructure

 160  Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $1,279,193 $0 $0 $0 $0 $552,849 $29,925 $1,861,967 $0 $1,861,967 

 

 171  Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current $2,148,058 $2,148,058 $2,148,058 

 172  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due

 173  Grants Receivable - Non Current

 174  Other Assets

 176  Investments in Joint Ventures

 180  Total Non-Current Assets $3,427,251 $0 $0 $0 $0 $552,849 $29,925 $4,010,025 $0 $4,010,025 

 

 200  Deferred Outflow of Resources

 

 290  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources $4,200,470 $0 $11,337 $265,333 $0 $939,405 $256,948 $5,673,493 ($229,405) $5,444,088 
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Project Total

14.896 PIH Family 

Self-Sufficiency 

Program

14.870 Resident 

Opportunity and 

Supportive 

Services

6.2 Component 

Unit - Blended

14.182 N/C S/R 

Section 8 

Programs

1 Business 

Activities
COCC Subtotal ELIM Total

 
 311  Bank Overdraft

 312  Accounts Payable <= 90 Days $3,141 $49,982 $53,123 $53,123 

 313  Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due

 321  Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable $423 $423 $423 

 322  Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion $1,277 $625 $1,902 $1,902 

 324  Accrued Contingency Liability

 325  Accrued Interest Payable

 331  Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs

 332  Account Payable - PHA Projects

 333  Accounts Payable - Other Government $10,064 $10,064 $10,064 

 341  Tenant Security Deposits $17,927 $17,927 $17,927 

 342  Unearned Revenue $1,592 $1,592 $1,592 

 343  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue 

 344  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings

 345  Other Current Liabilities $2,730 $2,730 $2,730 

 346  Accrued Liabilities - Other

 347  Inter Program - Due To $6,287 $11,337 $211,781 $229,405 ($229,405) $0 

 348  Loan Liability - Current $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 

 310  Total Current Liabilities $189,877 $0 $11,337 $0 $0 $3,766 $262,186 $467,166 ($229,405) $237,761 

 

 351  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue

 352  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings

 353  Non-current Liabilities - Other $31,107 $31,107 $31,107 

 354  Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current $11,496 $5,629 $17,125 $17,125 

 355  Loan Liability - Non Current $1,325,002 $1,325,002 $1,325,002 

 356  FASB 5 Liabilities

 357  Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities

 350  Total Non-Current Liabilities $1,367,605 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,629 $0 $1,373,234 $0 $1,373,234 

 

 300  Total Liabilities $1,557,482 $0 $11,337 $0 $0 $9,395 $262,186 $1,840,400 ($229,405) $1,610,995 

 

 400  Deferred Inflow of Resources

 

 508.4  Net Investment in Capital Assets $1,279,193 $552,849 $29,925 $1,861,967 $1,861,967 

 511.4  Restricted Net Position

 512.4  Unrestricted Net Position $1,363,795 $0 $0 $265,333 $0 $377,161 ($35,163) $1,971,126 $1,971,126 

 513  Total Equity - Net Assets / Position $2,642,988 $0 $0 $265,333 $0 $930,010 ($5,238) $3,833,093 $0 $3,833,093 

 

 600  Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - Net $4,200,470 $0 $11,337 $265,333 $0 $939,405 $256,948 $5,673,493 ($229,405) $5,444,088 

 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF GRIFFIN 

FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE – INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

 

 35 

 
 

Project Total

14.896 PIH Family 

Self-Sufficiency 

Program

14.870 Resident 

Opportunity and 

Supportive 

Services

6.2 Component 

Unit - Blended

14.182 N/C S/R 

Section 8 

Programs

1 Business 

Activities
COCC Subtotal ELIM Total

 
 70300  Net Tenant Rental Revenue $206,407 $206,407 $206,407 

 70400  Tenant Revenue - Other $6,403 $6,403 $6,403 

 70500  Total Tenant Revenue $212,810 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $212,810 $0 $212,810 

 

 70600  HUD PHA Operating Grants $760,950 $69,000 $71,556 $0 $901,506 $901,506 

 70610  Capital Grants $7,000 $0 $7,000 $7,000 

 70710  Management Fee $88,178 $88,178 ($88,178) $0 

 70720  Asset Management Fee $15,600 $15,600 ($15,600) $0 

 70730  Book Keeping Fee $11,506 $11,506 ($11,506) $0 

 70740  Front Line Service Fee

 70750  Other Fees

 70700  Total Fee Revenue $115,284 $115,284 ($115,284) $0 

 

 70800  Other Government Grants $64,415 $64,415 $64,415 

 71100  Investment Income - Unrestricted $17,946 $1,354 $2,799 $22,099 $22,099 

 71200  Mortgage Interest Income

 71300  Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale

 71310  Cost of Sale of Assets

 71400  Fraud Recovery

 71500  Other Revenue $22,606 $682,021 $431 $705,058 $705,058 

 71600  Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets

 72000  Investment Income - Restricted

 70000  Total Revenue $1,021,312 $69,000 $71,556 $0 $0 $747,790 $118,514 $2,028,172 ($115,284) $1,912,888 

 

 91100  Administrative Salaries $196,969 $66,407 $263,376 $263,376 

 91200  Auditing Fees $7,200 $400 $11,332 $18,932 $18,932 

 91300  Management Fee $88,178 $88,178 ($88,178) $0 

 91310  Book-keeping Fee $11,506 $11,506 ($11,506) $0 

 91400  Advertising and Marketing

 91500  Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative $78,089 $40,309 $118,398 $118,398 

 91600  Office Expenses $76,487 $57 $9,182 $85,726 $85,726 

 91700  Legal Expense $9,427 $8,291 $887 $18,605 $18,605 

 91800  Travel $28,035 $3,164 $31,199 $31,199 

 91810  Allocated Overhead

 91900  Other $73,463 $7,962 $44,572 $125,997 $125,997 

 91000  Total Operating - Administrative $569,354 $0 $0 $0 $0 $123,426 $69,137 $761,917 ($99,684) $662,233 

 

 92000  Asset Management Fee $15,600 $15,600 ($15,600) $0 

 92100  Tenant Services - Salaries $1,896 $51,651 $46,847 $100,394 $100,394 

 92200  Relocation Costs

 92300  Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services $860 $17,349 $24,506 $42,715 $42,715 

 92400  Tenant Services - Other $130,916 $203 $4,000 $162 $135,281 $135,281 

 92500  Total Tenant Services $133,672 $69,000 $71,556 $0 $0 $4,000 $162 $278,390 $0 $278,390 

 

 93100  Water $44,750 $165 $282 $45,197 $45,197 

 93200  Electricity $28,970 $956 $677 $30,603 $30,603 

 93300  Gas $920 $70 $990 $990 

 93400  Fuel

 93500  Labor
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14.896 PIH Family 

Self-Sufficiency 

Program

14.870 Resident 

Opportunity and 

Supportive 

Services
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Unit - Blended

14.182 N/C S/R 

Section 8 

Programs

1 Business 
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COCC Subtotal ELIM Total

 
 93600  Sewer $38,005 $471 $305 $38,781 $38,781 

 93700  Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities

 93800  Other Utilities Expense

 93000  Total Utilities $112,645 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,592 $1,334 $115,571 $0 $115,571 

 

 94100  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor $85,221 $85,221 $85,221 

 94200  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other $19,596 $880 $1,031 $21,507 $21,507 

 94300  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts $68,389 $79,984 $1,486 $149,859 $149,859 

 94500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance $38,646 $38,646 $38,646 

 94000  Total Maintenance $211,852 $0 $0 $0 $0 $80,864 $2,517 $295,233 $0 $295,233 

 

 95100  Protective Services - Labor

 95200  Protective Services - Other Contract Costs

 95300  Protective Services - Other $22,508 $113 $22,621 $22,621 

 95500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services

 95000  Total Protective Services $22,508 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $113 $22,621 $0 $22,621 

 

 96110  Property Insurance $20,767 $2,030 $22,797 $22,797 

 96120  Liability Insurance $8,128 $7,800 $904 $16,832 $16,832 

 96130  Workmen's Compensation

 96140  All Other Insurance $174 $19 $193 $193 

 96100  Total insurance Premiums $29,069 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,800 $2,953 $39,822 $0 $39,822 

 

 96200  Other General Expenses

 96210  Compensated Absences $15,076 $4,269 $19,345 $19,345 

 96300  Payments in Lieu of Taxes $10,064 $4,291 $14,355 $14,355 

 96400  Bad debt - Tenant Rents $1,910 $1,910 $1,910 

 96500  Bad debt - Mortgages

 96600  Bad debt - Other

 96800  Severance Expense

 96000  Total Other General Expenses $27,050 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,560 $0 $35,610 $0 $35,610 

 

 96710  Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable

 96720  Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term) $11,446 $11,446 $11,446 

 96730  Amortization of Bond Issue Costs

 96700  Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost $11,446 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $11,446 $0 $11,446 

 

 96900  Total Operating Expenses $1,133,196 $69,000 $71,556 $0 $0 $226,242 $76,216 $1,576,210 ($115,284) $1,460,926 

 

 97000  Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses ($111,884) $0 $0 $0 $0 $521,548 $42,298 $451,962 $0 $451,962 

 

 97100  Extraordinary Maintenance

 97200  Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized $21,172 $21,172 $21,172 

 97300  Housing Assistance Payments

 97350  HAP Portability-In

 97400  Depreciation Expense $133,410 $6,076 $3,920 $143,406 $143,406 

 97500  Fraud Losses
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Self-Sufficiency 
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 97600  Capital Outlays  - Governmental Funds

 97700  Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds

 97800  Dwelling Units Rent Expense

 90000  Total Expenses $1,287,778 $69,000 $71,556 $0 $0 $232,318 $80,136 $1,740,788 ($115,284) $1,625,504 

 

 10010  Operating Transfer In $49,573 $49,573 ($49,573) $0 

 10020  Operating transfer Out ($49,573) ($49,573) $49,573 $0 

 10030  Operating Transfers from/to Primary Government

 10040  Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit

 10050  Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds

 10060  Proceeds from Property Sales

 10070  Extraordinary Items, Net Gain/Loss

 10080  Special Items (Net Gain/Loss)

 10091  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In

 10092  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out

 10093  Transfers between Program and Project - In

 10094  Transfers between Project and Program - Out

 10100  Total Other financing Sources (Uses) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 

 10000  Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses ($266,466) $0 $0 $0 $0 $515,472 $38,378 $287,384 $0 $287,384 

 

 11020  Required Annual Debt Principal Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 11030  Beginning Equity $2,909,454 $0 $0 $265,333 $0 $414,538 ($43,616) $3,545,709 $3,545,709 

 11040  Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors $0 $0 $0 

 11050  Changes in Compensated Absence Balance

 11060  Changes in Contingent Liability Balance

 11070  Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability

 11080  Changes in Special Term/Severance Benefits Liability

 11090  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Dwelling Rents

 11100  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

 11170  Administrative Fee Equity

 

 11180  Housing Assistance Payments Equity

 11190  Unit Months Available 1536 1536 1536

 11210  Number of Unit Months Leased 1513 1513 1513

 11270  Excess Cash $423,931 $423,931 $423,931 

 11610  Land Purchases $0 $0 $0 $0 

 11620  Building Purchases $7,000 $0 $7,000 $7,000 

 11630  Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases $0 $0 $0 $0 

 11640  Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases $0 $0 $0 $0 

 11650  Leasehold Improvements Purchases $0 $0 $0 $0 

 11660  Infrastructure Purchases $0 $0 $0 $0 

 13510  CFFP Debt Service Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 

 13901  Replacement Housing Factor Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 

 


